
222

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
Thursday, 14th February, 2019
at 5.30 pm

PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING

Council Chamber - Civic Centre

This meeting is open to the public

Members

Councillor P Baillie (Chair)
Councillor Fitzhenry
Councillor Furnell
Councillor Galton (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Harwood
Councillor Whitbread
Councillor Bell
Councillor Kataria
Councillor Mitchell

Appointed Members

Rob Sanders, Church of England
Catherine Hobbs, Roman Catholic Church
Vacancies

 Primary Parent Governor Representative; 
and 

 Secondary Parent Governor Representative

Contacts

Judy Cordell
Senior Democratic Support Officer
Tel. 023 8083 2766
Email: judy.cordell@southampton.gov.uk 

Mark Pirnie
Scrutiny Manager
Tel: 023 8083 3886
Email: mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

mailto:judy.cordell@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk


2

PUBLIC INFORMATION

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee holds the Executive to account, exercises the call-
in process, and sets and monitors standards for scrutiny. It formulates a programme of scrutiny 
inquiries and appoints Scrutiny Panels to undertake them.  Members of the Executive cannot serve on 
this Committee.

Role of Overview and Scrutiny
Overview and Scrutiny includes the following three functions: 
 Holding the Executive to account by questioning and evaluating the Executive’s actions, both before 

and after decisions taken.  
 Developing and reviewing Council policies, including the Policy Framework and Budget Strategy.  
 Making reports and recommendations on any aspect of Council business and other matters that 

affect the City and its citizens.  
Overview and Scrutiny can ask the Executive to reconsider a decision, but they do not have the power 
to change the decision themselves. 

Use of Social Media:- The Council supports 
the video or audio recording of meetings open 
to the public, for either live or subsequent 
broadcast. However, if, in the Chair’s opinion, 
a person filming or recording a meeting or 
taking photographs is interrupting proceedings 
or causing a disturbance, under the Council’s 
Standing Orders the person can be ordered to 
stop their activity, or to leave the meeting. 
By entering the meeting room you are 
consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting 
and or/training purposes. The meeting may be 
recorded by the press or members of the 
public.
Any person or organisation filming, recording 
or broadcasting any meeting of the Council is 
responsible for any claims or other liability 
resulting from them doing so.
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the 
recording of meetings is available on the 
Council’s website.

Procedure / Public Representations
At the discretion of the Chair, members of the public 
may address the meeting on any report included on 
the agenda in which they have a relevant interest. Any 
member of the public wishing to address the meeting 
should advise the Democratic Support Officer (DSO) 
whose contact details are on the front sheet of the 
agenda.
Smoking Policy:- The Council operates a no-
smoking policy in all civic buildings.
Mobile Telephones:- Please switch your mobile 
telephones to silent whilst in the meeting
Fire Procedure:-
In the event of a fire or other emergency a continuous 
alarm will sound and you will be advised by Council 
officers what action to take. 
Access is available for disabled people. Please 
contact the Democratic Support Officer who will help 
to make any necessary arrangements.

The Southampton City Council Strategy (2016-
2020) is a key document and sets out the four 
key outcomes that make up our vision.

 Southampton has strong and 
sustainable economic growth

 Children and young people get a good 
start in life 

 People in Southampton live safe, 
healthy, independent lives

 Southampton is an attractive modern 
City, where people are proud to live 
and work

Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year 2018/19

2018 2019
14 June 10 January
12 July 14 February
16 August 14 March
13 September 11 April 
11 October
15 November
13 December

http://www.southampton.gov.uk/Images/Council-strategy-2016-20_tcm63-387729.pdf
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/Images/Council-strategy-2016-20_tcm63-387729.pdf


3

CONDUCT OF MEETING

TERMS OF REFERENCE BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED
The general role and terms of reference for 
the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee, together with those for all 
Scrutiny Panels, are set out in Part 2 
(Article 6) of the Council’s Constitution, and 
their particular roles are set out in Part 4 
(Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules – 
paragraph 5) of the Constitution.

Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this meeting.

RULES OF PROCEDURE QUORUM
The meeting is governed by the Council 
Procedure Rules and the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in Part 
4 of the Constitution.

The minimum number of appointed Members 
required to be in attendance to hold the 
meeting is 4.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, both 
the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other Interest”  they 
may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any 
matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to: 
(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
(ii) Sponsorship:
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton City 
Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense incurred by 
you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This includes 
any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union 
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the you / 
your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under which goods 
or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has not been fully 
discharged.
(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton.
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of Southampton 
for a month or longer.
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and 
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests.
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) has a 
place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either:

a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that body, or

b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of 
the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest 
that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.



4

Other Interests

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership 
of, or  occupation of a position of general control or management in:

Any body to which they  have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council

Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature

Any body directed to charitable purposes

Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy

Principles of Decision Making

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

 proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
 due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;
 respect for human rights;
 a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;
 setting out what options have been considered;
 setting out reasons for the decision; and
 clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

 understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  The 
decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

 take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority 
as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

 leave out of account irrelevant considerations;
 act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;
 not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as 

the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);
 comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual basis.  

Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward funding are 
unlawful; and

 act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



5

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY) 

To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 4.3.

2  DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, 
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the 
agenda for this meeting.

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic 
Support Officer.

3  DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST 

Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a 
Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being 
scrutinised at this meeting. 

 

4  DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP 

Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter 
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting.

5  STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR 

6  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING) 
(Pages 1 - 6)

To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on 10th 
January 2019 and 16th January 2019 (Special) and to deal with any matters arising, 
attached.

7  THE FUTURE OF GLEN LEE AND HOLCROFT HOUSE RESIDENTIAL CARE 
HOMES 
(Pages 7 - 28)

Report of the Cabinet Member for Adult Care relating to the future of Glen Lee and 
Holcroft House Residential Care Homes.



6

8  REDUCING DRUG RELATED LITTER – PROGRESS REPORT 
(Pages 29 - 34)

Report of the Director of Legal and Governance detailing the progress made against 
recommendations made by the inquiry

9  MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE 
(Pages 35 - 40)

Report of the Director of Legal and Governance enabling the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee to monitor and track progress on recommendations made to 
the Executive at previous meetings.

Wednesday, 6 February 2019 Director of Legal and Governance



Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: THE FUTURE OF GLEN LEE AND HOLCROFT HOUSE 
RESIDENTIAL CARE HOMES

DATE OF DECISION: 14 FEBRUARY 2019
REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT CARE

CONTACT DETAILS
AUTHOR: Name: Paul Juan Tel: 023 8083 2530

E-mail: paul.juan@southampton.gov.uk

Director Name: Paul Juan Tel: 023 8083 2530
E-mail: paul.juan@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
NOT APPLICABLE
BRIEF SUMMARY
The consultation on the future of Holcroft House and Glen Lee was open from 24 
October 2018 until 16 January 2019. A recommendation on the future of these 
residential care homes will be considered by Cabinet on 19 February 2019, as part of a 
paper on the council’s revised Medium Term Financial Strategy. The Cabinet report will 
be published on 11 February 2019 and will include details of the consultation and an 
updated Equality and Safety Impact Assessment. By agreement with the Chair of the 
Committee, this report addresses the outstanding questions raised at OSMC on 15 
November 2018 and others that have been raised via the Chair, prior to publication of 
the Cabinet report, which will also be available in advance of the meeting.
RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i) That the Committee notes the report.
REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. This report has been provided at the request of the Chair of the Committee.
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

2. Not applicable, as the alternative would be to not provide a report for the 
Committee.

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)
3. The council ran consultations on a range of budget proposals for 2019/20 and 

2020/21. As a part of this, views were sought on a specific set of proposals 
regarding the future of Glen Lee and Holcroft House residential care homes. 
The consultation ran from 24 October 2018 to 16 January 2019. During the 
consultation period a series of public consultation meetings were held, 
including with relatives of residents of both homes. Choices Advocacy (an 
advocacy agency independent of the council) helped to ensure that the views 
of current residents were captured, as far as possible and appropriate. A full 
report on the consultation and an updated Equality and Safety Impact Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Assessment (ESIA) will be appended to the Cabinet report on the council’s 
revised Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and budget 2019/20 to 
2022/23. This report will contain a recommendation for Cabinet on the future 
of the homes and will be published on 11 February 2019. Meetings with 
relatives and members of staff at both homes have been scheduled to 
coincide with the publication of the Cabinet report.

4. There are currently 21 permanent residents at Holcroft House and 13 
permanent residents at Glen Lee, although three people across both homes 
are currently being assessed for nursing care because of a change in their 
needs.

5. During the consultation period, a task and finish group was established to 
consider alternative ways of delivering services at the homes, in order to 
support the council’s objectives and the financial viability of the homes. The 
task and finish group was chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive and included 
the homes’ Registered Managers and trade union representatives. The group 
received reports on alternative models that had been worked up by the 
Registered Managers of each home. These are attached at Appendix 1.

6. The Committee requested the following breakdown of occupancy information 
at its meeting on 15 November 2018.

Figure 1: Glen Lee and Holcroft House – annual occupancy (%)
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

(year to 
date)

Glen Lee 97.6 82.3 86.0 86.2 78.7 47.6

Holcroft 98.2 86.1 94.4 92.4 94.6 95.8

Both 97.9 84.2 90.3 89.4 86.8 72.1

7. Appendix 2 sets out the responses to further questions that have been 
received via the Chair of the Committee.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue 

8. The capital and revenue implications of the recommendation to be considered 
by Cabinet on 19 February 2019 will be set out in the report being published 
on 11 February 2019.

Property/Other
9. The property and any other implications of the recommendation to be 

considered by Cabinet on 19 February 2019 will be set out in the report being 
published on 11 February 2019.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report: 

10. The statutory power to implement the recommendation to be considered by 
Cabinet on 19 February 2019 will be set out in the report being published on 
11 February 2019.

Other Legal Implications: 
Page 8



11. Any other legal implications regarding the recommendation to be considered 
by Cabinet on 19 February 2019 will be set out in the report being published 
on 11 February 2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
12. A proportionate risk assessment has been completed for each of the current 

residents at Holcroft House and Glen Lee, which has included but is not 
limited to individual specialist equipment, culture, religious and language 
needs, nutritional and special dietary needs, cognition and complex care 
needs, length of time within the homes, sensory needs, mental health 
conditions, and social and emotional needs. The risk of deterioration of any 
resident is being monitored and evaluated daily. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS
13. The proposals consulted on contribute to the council’s priority outcome of 

supporting people to live safe, healthy, independent lives.

KEY DECISION? Yes/No
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: ALL

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Appendices 
1. Alternative models proposed by Registered Managers and considered by the 

residential care homes task and finish group
2. Responses to additional questions submitted via the Chair of the Committee
Documents In Members’ Rooms
1. None
Equality Impact Assessment 
Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and
Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out?

Yes/No

Data Protection Impact Assessment
Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out?

Yes/No

Other Background Documents
Other Background documents available for inspection at:
Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A 
allowing document to be 
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. Cabinet meeting 16 October 2018 
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/documents/s
37120/Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20U
pdate%20201819%20to%20202223.pdf 

Not applicable

Page 9

http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/documents/s37120/Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20Update%20201819%20to%20202223.pdf
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/documents/s37120/Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20Update%20201819%20to%20202223.pdf
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/documents/s37120/Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20Update%20201819%20to%20202223.pdf


2. Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee meeting 
15 November 2018 
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/documents/s
37505/Report.pdf 

Not applicable

Page 10

http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/documents/s37505/Report.pdf
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/documents/s37505/Report.pdf


ALTERNATIVE MODELS PROPOSED BY REGISTERED MANAGERS AND 
CONSIDERED BY THE RESIDENTIAL CARE HOMES TASK AND FINISH GROUP

Page 11

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



PART A: REMODELLING GLEN LEE

Purpose of report

1.1. The purpose of this report is to set out the proposed strategic direction for the 
provision of good quality, sustainable accommodation for Adult Social Care in
Southampton. These proposals are based on our work to understand the current and 
future accommodation needs for social care and for residents in the city.  To 
consider the future use of Glen Lee House and how to best serve residents.

1.2. Adult Social Care (ASC) is an increasingly high profile area of local authority 
business. There is an acknowledgement at a national level that social care is under 
increasing pressure for a variety of reasons including an increasing demand to 
support people with more complex needs in their own homes. A range of 
accommodation solutions will be required in Southampton to meet this complexity. In 
particular Nursing Home facilities for people with dementia and/or with physical 
disabilities is a known gap in current provision within the city boundary.

This report sets out potential solutions for utilising the existing Glen Lee site within 
the city to address this gap.

1.3. There is a reduced need within the city for residential homes with dementia, and 
the majority of residential placements are sourced at below the £600 threshold.

1.4. There is a deficit of nursing homes beds with dementia within the city boundary, 
and a majority of the placements are sourced outside of the city.

2. Recommendations

2.1. In order to provide a social care service that meets the needs of Southampton
residents, it is suggested that Glen Lee is rebuilt to be a 32 bedded nursing home on 
the current site.

3. Background
3.1 Glen Lee was built in 1964 and is a purpose built local authority home managed 
by Southampton City Council and is located in the residential area of Bitterne, a 
suburb to the east of Southampton city. The home is designed over two storeys, and 
offers accommodation in 34 single bedrooms with a lift access to the first floor.

3.2 The rationale for the redevelopment of this site is to provide a specialist care 
facility.  The new home will provide 24 hour nursing care for people with dementia, 
enduring mental illness. In addition there will be step down beds for those in 
discharge transition and specialist beds for those requiring palliative care. All of 
these services are designed to meet the needs of the local community within which 
the home will be built. 

3.3 The development looks to enhance the existing limited services currently 
available, and meet the increasing needs of the local communities. 

Page 12



3.4 The care home will be registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and 
the design and specification of the facility will reflect the latest way of thinking in 
relation to the care of older people suffering from conditions such as dementia and 
Alzheimer’s. 

3.5 It is proposed that the new building will be of a sustainable design and 
construction and that it is ‘future proofed’ to meet future care needs and 
expectations, of clients and families. 

3.6 The home will be a significant employer and an economic generating 
businesses. 

4. Demand

4.1

Nursing Home Placements:

190 interventions for NH long stay 

30 Interventions at £529.90

15 interventions for over £1k

Highest cost is £1645.98

Short stays – 6 Interventions £529 - £1484.98

Nursing Home Placements OPMH:

109 Interventions for OPMH

16 Interventions for £529.90

32 people for £699.58

Highest cost is £3620.05 for challenging behaviour detailed above.

Short stays – 5 Interventions £196.26 – £1600.06

4. Cost of rebuild
4.1. In order to determine the preferred option a number of considerations have been 
taken into account, including the above factors as well as the future required staffing 
levels, safe and effective sustainable quality care, and maximisation of choice and 
independence through a variety of accommodation and support options:

Page 13



4.2.

Cost Advice - Outline Business Case 
 Cost 
Estimate

Glen Lee conversion to create 19 beds with 14 
ensuite £4,050,000

Glen Lee conversion to create 19 beds with 18 
ensuite * £4,200,000

Glen Lee conversion to create 19 beds with all 
ensuite ** £4,450,000

Glen Lee New Build to create 32 beds with 
ensuite £5,950,000

Note: 

All estimates assume a start date for 
construction in the 4th quarter of 2020. Holcroft 
estimate provided last year has been adjusted 
on this basis

* To create 18 rooms with ensuite will require 
the loss of 2 of the sitting rooms on the first 
floor 

** To create 19 rooms with ensuite will require 
the loss of 2 of the sitting rooms on the first 
floor and the kitchen /dining room on the west 
wing ground floor 

4.3. Each room can be dependent on level of need, can be in the region of £1000 to 
£1200 for the level of intensity and support that is required. 

4.4 To consider the investment from local NHS partners to ensure reduction in 
DToCs and excess bed days.  

5. Equality Safety Impact Assessment
5.1 A full ESIA will need to be completed.  As the proposal is for future use with a 
referred option of closure of both residential homes within the city.  

5.2 To consider if consultation is required in excess of the current consultation or if 
engagement is required rather than further consultation. 

Page 14



6. Legal implications

6.1 The main issue being the potentiality of redundancies and potential changes with 
respect to change is registration.

6.2 There could be issues with respect to contractual variation of employees terms 
and conditions of employment. That risk could be mitigated with appropriate 
consultation with regard to redundancy.

6.3 Consultation with those staff members who have Union affiliation will be required. 

7. Finance comments

7.1. The recommendations contained within this report seek to rationalise the in-
house residential estate, ensuring sufficient beds are available for the known 
demand, that staffing levels are appropriate to deliver safe, quality care; and also 
that the proposed model is financially sustainable.

7.2. As highlighted within the report, the financial modelling assumes that the based 
the current occupancy levels, existing residents can be accommodated with the 
other available private provision. 

8. Staffing Costs

8.1 The current staffing costs are likely to remain the same, and further work is 
required to verify these assumptions.  The current grade 9 staff are care co-
ordinators and they would be the same grade as qualified nurses.  Therefore, for this 
proposal we have currently assumed the same staff level costs.

9. Financial Modelling:

Based on the current estimated data, the proposal for Glen Lee does not deliver a 
cost saving compared to the alternative private sector provision alternative, this is 
mainly due to the cost of SCC staffing being higher. There is also a significant capital 
outlay required, which, due to the scheme not having a forecast saving attached 
does not have a specified payback period. The building redesign is expected to meet 
future care needs, but is not a different facility to private provision elsewhere. This 
proposal will impair the ability for the SCC savings target for 2020/21 to be met.

Page 15



PART B: HOLCROFT HOUSE PROPOSAL FOR A CITY WIDE DEMENTIA 
SERVICE

1.1 Business summary: 
Bringing local dementia services together under one roof as a ‘Dementia Hub’ to 
minimise admissions to hospital and nursing care and maximise mental and physical 
health and wellbeing to enable people to live as independently as possible in the 
community.

Providing; information, advice and tailored support for individuals, families and their 
support network; opportunities for people living with dementia to engage in 
meaningful activities; access dementia friendly hairdressing and chiropody services, 
therapy rooms, as well as supported baths and showers.  A dementia café will offer a 
range of food and drinks to meet individual needs and promote healthy eating.  Other 
services such as a Smart/IT zone, laundry services, money management, social 
events and outings as well as telecare could also be accessed to help support 
people to live well with dementia.     
1.2 Business aims: 

Prevent: preventing emergency and crisis situations through understanding people 
and their unique living situations; offering opportunities for people to tailor and target 
how and when they access information, support and services when they need them; 
minimising behaviours that are challenging to individual’s and others through 
effective mental health support and offering accessible information, guidance and 
training to enable informal carers and individuals to live well with dementia.  

Promote: Promoting independence and choice through use of technologies and 
promoting understanding, to guide people through the dementia journey from first 
worries and concerns, through diagnosis, living with dementia, use of Power of 
Attorney (PoA) and advanced care planning.  Promoting health and wellbeing 
through access to medical professionals, help with medication and medication 
management, physical activity and healthy eating. 

Support: supporting people to live longer in their own homes through a range of 
services including out-reach, advocacy and social work; help to choose the best 
housing options, using tailored care planning and technologies; minimising hospital 
admissions through use of residential short term placements for planned respite as 
well as emergency and crisis situations; offering people in hospital a short-term 
residential placement for intermediate care to get them ready for their own home; 
offering targeted and individualised occupational therapy, GP services, mental health 
services and falls prevention support to maximise chances of success when living at 
home. 

Safeguard: safeguarding people through providing day and residential respite 
services; informal opportunities for individuals and others to talk about any worries 
and concerns; visits to the Dementia Café and meal provision, hairdressing, 
chiropody, bathing and showing services; offering support with PoA and money 
management. 

Page 16



1.3 Dementia Hub Services: 

The multi dementia hub will encourage the use of a community function, and be 
embedded in local community.

Dementia Information and Advice: Open Monday to Friday for anyone wanting to 
know more about living with dementia. With plenty of parking available, drop-in to 
learn more about the services available and access the latest information.

Memory Assessment Service: Attend a Memory Assessment Service clinic 
following a referral from a GP. Emotional support for each individual before and after 
assessments and advice and guidance throughout, as needed.  (An NHS funded 
service accessed through an appointment with own GP)

Social Work Assessment Clinics: To talk to a responsive, trained person for 
essential one-to-one support and advice. A familiar face available to support people 
living with dementia, their families, carers and friends, help ‘find your way’ through 
the health and social care system, provide accurate and accessible information, 
support and signpost to the right services at the right time, help individuals to live 
well with dementia, provide emotional support for people living with dementia and 
their families and to also help plan for the future including information when choosing 
and planning long term care.  To offer social care reviews and assessments.

Health and Wellbeing Services A range of health and wellbeing therapists offering 
a number of different services. (Occupational Therapy / Community Nursing service).

A Telecare assessment service: Innovative Dementia Technology and Equipment 
available to demonstrate to people; what is available, how it works, keeping up-to-
date with the latest technology and sample the latest innovations available for 
dementia care and support.

Consultation Rooms: For professionals and specialists offering advice around 
things that cause real worry to individuals such as money and legal matters.  Can 
also be used for break out as well as individual community use.

Training and Information: A range of specific training and education facilities for 
people supporting others living with dementia including families and informal care 
givers as well as formal care workers from dementia service providers; to ensure the 
latest dementia knowledge and training is shared.

Dementia friendly Café, Hair Salon, Bathing Service, chiropody 

Day Respite Services: Befriending, Activities, supported outings, 

Residential Respite Services: The residential element will be broken down in to 
clear distinct areas, to include mental health, end of life, dementia and challenging 
behaviours.  The larger rooms will be developed in to more ensuite facilities, and the 
smaller rooms will be reduced in numbers to have break out/meeting rooms for 
information, advice and offer clinics. It will be 20 bedded units.
1.4 Potential Funding and Partnership Working: 
It is anticipated that a variety of voluntary groups, charitable organisations, and the 
NHS would want to work in partnership in this venture, for example Solent NHS 

Page 17



Trust, Primary Care and Age UK.  This would need to be explored further if 
Southampton City Council believe that this model would be sustainable.  This could 
be completed with a variety of different funding streams or unit/task specific funding.

2. Business Model
The unit will have three clear distinct areas, and maintain its current structure and 
layout with minimal changes. Due to the layout of the home being on one level which 
surrounds a courtyard garden my thoughts would be to divide the home into 3 
separate areas(to include locked alarmed doors etc.)

High Dependency

This has been called High dependency for the purpose of this paper, however further 
thought around the name of this wing would be required.

One wing (currently Cottage Mews) into a 9 Bedded High Dependency Wing for 
residents whom have a Diagnosis of Dementia to also include a level of mental 
health and Behaviours that challenge ages 55+. The new wing will have its only 
entrance as well as a specific piece of open space, the community courtyard can 
also be utilised direct from this wing.  

The rooms are large within in this wing, and have basins already within the unit, it is 
felt that toilets/saniflows could be installed with minimal work and partitions for 
dignity and privacy.  The unit would be able to support bariatric residents within this 
unit and will be wheelchair accessible.  

The units will have an additional bathroom/wet room installed and would require a 
sluice room.  It is anticipated that a sensory room could be developed to offer a 
snoezlen approach with an adjacent therapy room.   This will concentrate on health 
and well being, offer assessment venue for mental health teams, therapy and 
psychiatrists. There would be a duty office and a medical room also in situ and an 
equipment room.

Please see the floor plan for more specific details on this proposal.

Short Stay Unit 

My proposal would be to keep Blossom Drive as a Dementia Home for Residents 
with Moderate/Severe Dementia.

This would become an 8 Bedded Wing focusing on respite.  Each of the 8 bedrooms 
would remain the same.

The Reception Office would remain in situ to support/guide visitors to either The High 
Dependency Wing, Dementia Home or Day Centre where required. The Duty Office 
and medical room would remain in situ.

Page 18



Community Hub

This would be incorporated into the following areas (part of Blossom Drive and into 
Memory Lane).

The day provision could accommodate up to 20 Residents.  Blossom Drive Dining 
room and conservatory would become dual purpose rooms for dining and activities.

Additional to this would be a Smart Room for people in the community to access 
resources, such as telecare, computer, and access to a telephone.

There is already a hair salon in situ but this will be opened up to the whole 
community so that it can be accessed by all.  A bedroom will be converted in to a 
walk in shower room and both of these could be accessed people in the community.  
This will enable more people to remain at home.  

A community laundry service will also be developed to support the local community 
and the properties in close vicinity who have additional care needs.  

The main kitchen can be the support and supplier for all three individual areas but 
there might also be a possibility of a meals on wheels service of some kind locally? 
Times 8-8pm to include supper

2.1  Demand

There is currently a demand for this type of residential accommodation, and by the 
mixed registration a number of costly placements could be sourced in this unit.  
Currently there are the following in the city:

Residential Home Placements:

360 Interventions

Highest amount is £2645.02 

117 Interventions are above £1k

55 Interventions are at £474.18 

46 Interventions are below £474.18

12 People are having residential short stay at a cost of £229 - £1365

Residential Home Placements OPMH: 

124 Interventions

51 Interventions at £474.18

100 Interventions are less than £600

6 Interventions are above £1k (challenging behaviours)

Highest cost is £1524.65 (challenging needs)

Page 19



2.3 Costings:

Day Support is in the region of £50 per day

Bathing clinics £15 per session

Meal provision will be in the region of £4 per meal

The costings per bed could be in the region of £900/£950 weekly for high 
dependency unit

For the day provision it will be approximately £50 per day including three meals

For the respite unit it will be £650 per week

2.4 Additional Works:

For all services would need to price in changes to Fire Plans, Call Bells, and 
Knocking down internal walls, and installation of ensuite pods, equipment, decoration 
etc.

Internal key pad doors to separate all three areas.

Positioning and installation of three separate entrances.

Further work is required specifically to work up the cost of the adaptaions.

To cost in for an Electronic system of care to reduce time in recording and increase 
time spend with Residents.

In the point/Hub room could look at different services being available a day a week 

Mon – Admiral Nurses

Tues – Dementia Friends

Wed – Age Concern

Thur – Alzheimer’s Society

Fri – Southern Health Clinic

Sat – Solent Health Clinic

2.5 Potential staff structure would need

Registered Manager overall – compliance/policies/Budget/Day to Day/Supervision 
etc

HD Day am/pm

9-5 X1 Deputy - policies/procedure/day to day support/Supervision

X1 Senior Carer – Day to Day/Medication/Supervision/Care/Wellbeing

Page 20



X2 Carers – Care/Wellbeing/Social

Potentially clinics for OT/Physio/Activities etc.

Additional to cover leave/sickness/training? 

X1 Carer (relief pool contracted 18 hrs can go up to full time to cover)

X1 Senior Carer (relief pool contracted 18 hrs can go up to full time to cover)

HD Night

X1 Senior Carer

X1 Carer? Dependant on needs possibly x2 at times?

Dementia Home Day am/pm

9-5 X1 Deputy - policies/procedure/day to day support/Supervision

X1 Senior Carer – Day to Day/Medication/Supervision/Care/Wellbeing

X1 Carer – Care/Wellbeing/Social

X1 Activity Co-ordinator?

Could link in with clinics in HD if appropriate?

Dementia Home Night

X1 Senior Carer

X1 Carer

Day Centre/Hub  (not sdure what hours we would do at this stage)

Day Centre leader

X2 Support Workers

To support all three services would need each day

X1 Cook and X2 Kitchen Assistants am

X2 Kitchen Assistant’s pm

To consider providing all meals for the three internal services plus a community 
service up until 8pm.

X1 Landry Assistant am and X1 laundry Assistant pm to support all three services 
and community (times to be agreed for community)

Page 21



Housekeeping

To support all three internal services

X2 Housekeeper am

X2 Housekeepers pm.

Finance

Based on the current estimated data, the proposal for Holcroft House does not 
deliver a cost saving compared to the alternative private sector provision alternative, 
this is mainly due to the cost of SCC staffing being higher. The capital outlay 
required for this development still needs to be fully costed, and as requires 
adaptation to the property will need a design brief. Demand for the services offered 
is assumed to be present within the city and not adversely affect any other existing 
provision arrangements for the Care, Day Centre and other Hub elements. This 
proposal will impair the ability for the SCC savings target for 2020/21 to be met.

Page 22



PART C: FINANCIAL MODELLING

HOLCROFT HOUSE

Full year 
running 
Cost

£ £

Capital Cost 1,000,000

Staffing Cost 1,112,280

Other non pay costs (as per existing Holcroft budget) 109,800

Total 1,000,000 1,222,080

Private sector provision cost saved £951,600

Additional Cost/(Saving) £270,480

GLEN LEE

Full year 
running 
Cost

£ £

Capital Cost 5,950,000

Staffing Cost 1,583,400

Other non pay costs (as per existing Holcroft budget) 111,000

Total 5,950,000 1,694,400

Private sector provision cost saved £1,664,000

Additional Cost/(Saving) £30,400

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



RESPONSES TO ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS SUBMITTED VIA THE CHAIR OF 
THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

1. Are there any outstanding fees for residential care owed to the Council by 
residents or their families? If so, how much is outstanding and can this be 
broken down by home? 

The current level of outstanding client contribution and care home fees owed 
by current residents of Holcroft House and Glen Lee is estimated to be 
£155,000. Please note these details could include unpaid care prior to their 
stay at Holcroft House or Glen Lee because of the council’s current 
accounting system. These data were obtained by a manual check of debtor 
records and matching them to current residents. 

2. How much debt has had to be written off by the Council in relation to fees 
owed for residential care at Glen Lee and Holcroft House, if any? 

These data are not available because of the council’s current accounting 
system. Of the debt that has been written off, it is not possible to say which 
part of adult social care this comes from.

3. How are fees collected by the Council (e.g. by invoices produced by the 
finance team, paid to the Council centrally or the homes directly)? 

Invoices are produced automatically from data exported from the client case 
management system to collect client contributions or for the full cost of care. 
These invoices are paid to the council centrally.

4. How are fees paid (online, direct debit, cash, cheque etc)? 

All of these methods are used to pay fees. 

5. Can statistics on the methods of payment be provided (e.g. of the overall 
payments made, the percentages for each method of payment used in the 
past 12 months)? 

This breakdown is not currently available.

6. Who is responsible for chasing payments? 

The Customer Payment and Debt team chase unpaid invoiced income for 
client contributions and care fees (for people who pay the entire cost of their 
care). This team would ring the billing representative, agree a repayment plan 
and then follow up in writing.  If there is no legal billing representative in place, 
steps would be taken to set up Deputyship.

7. Why is there not a separate budget / fund for the homes? Can a separate 
budget be set up? 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



There is a separate budget for the homes’ operating costs. These are the 
gross costs of running the homes, excluding income from residents.

Income from residents is budgeted for separately and is reported as part of 
the budget by care type. The reason for this is the way that the financial and 
social care IT systems have been set up. It would be possible to carry out a 
manual check of income received from the residents over a certain period. 
Automating this would also be possible, but the council has put a hold on 
making any changes to the current social care IT system (Paris) as we are 
implementing a new one (CareDirector). 

8. On average how long does it take for the Council to cash cheques received 
from residents/families? 

It usually takes 1 to 2 days to process once they are received by the team.

9. Can anonymised equality data (information about protected characteristics 
and full-time / part-time working status) about employees be collated and 
provided to UNISON and Unite?

Detailed information will be contained in a staff Equality and Safety Impact 
Assessment, following any staff consultation.

80 out of 83 people who are employed at Glen Lee and Holcroft House 
identify as women, and 3 identify as men. 

77 out of 83 people are employed on a part time basis, with 6 full time 
employees. 

52 people consider themselves to be “white British”, 9 consider themselves to 
be “black or Asian” and 6 consider themselves to be “white other” (this 
information has not been provided or is not known for 9 people). 

20 people report that they are not living with a disability, 3 people report that 
they are living with a disability and this information has not been provided or is 
not known for 60 people. 

10.When shifts need to be covered at Glen Lee or Holcroft, are in-house staff on 
permanent contracts offered first refusal of shifts before they are offered to 
agency staff? 

We are currently in the process of formulating a list of staff that are willing to 
do this on a voluntary basis. We would offer overtime to our staff group.  HR 
have checked current contractual arrangements.  All of the contracts have a 
specific sentence to allow them to occasionally work in other areas of the city 
when required.

Page 26



11.Does the call for shift cover go out to staff who work at both homes, before 
Agency Staff are contacted? 

We are currently in the process of formulating a list of staff that are willing to 
do this on a voluntary basis. This was sent out formally by the Adult Social 
Care Service Lead by email.

12.Are there any Agency or Temporary Employment Agency Workers who work 
at either home, who have been regularly working for the Council for more than 
3 months? If so, have they been offered permanent contracts with 
Southampton City Council to bring the spend on Agency staff down? 

Yes, there are some agency staff who have been employed for more than 
three months. Approval has now been given to create additional posts to 
cover both homes as part of an action plan to address agency spend. Agency 
staff have not yet been offered permanent contracts pending a decision on the 
future of the homes, in order to avoid compulsory redundancy if the 
recommendation is to close one or both homes. If there are any vacant posts 
on completion of the process, permanent or fixed term contracts will be 
offered to agency staff, as appropriate.  

13.What will be the cost of setting up and resourcing the project management 
team that will prepare the closure plan?

If the decision is taken to close both homes or one home, then a team will be 
established that have the required skills.  Currently a resource plan has been 
developed in regard to the consultation.

14.How much is it costing to provide advocacy services (through Choices 
Advocacy) to families and residents affected? 

£4,440

15.How many housing with care schemes are there in the city currently and 
which companies run those schemes? 

Scheme Housing provider Care provider

Manston Court SCC Allied Healthcare

Rosebrook Court Saxon Weald Allied Healthcare

Rozel Court SCC Allied Healthcare

The Graylings SCC Allied Healthcare

Erskine Court SCC Allied Healthcare

Page 27



16.Are care teams actually on site at the housing with care schemes within the 
city and do they get paid a living wage for their sleep-in shifts? 

Yes, care teams are on site at the housing with care schemes 24 hours a day. 
Staff are paid an hourly rate for the overnight cover meeting at a minimum the 
National Living Wage level plus an enhancement for out of hours work.

17. In order to ensure equality is promoted and advanced (as per the Public 
Sector Equality Duty), does the Council (or will the Council) require 
contractors that it will commission residential dementia care services to, to 
pay the living wage? 

The council requires all contractors to meet statutory standards. As such we 
require all residential care services to pay their staff at a minimum the 
National Living Wage (National Minimum Wage).

The council cannot enforce payment of staff at Living Wage level, as 
placements are made on only a spot purchase basis. Although all providers 
sign up to the council’s terms of inclusion, these are a tool to enable the spot 
purchase arrangements are able to be made, as opposed to a specific 
contract. The council does not have the power to enforce payment terms 
under these arrangements.

Each provider will manage their actual conditions in light of staffing and 
market requirements, and to meet their own circumstances. Many will already 
be paying over the minimum requirements in order to attract and to retain 
staff, as part of normal market conditions.

18.Managers at Glen Lee and Holcroft House have informed us that they do not 
received a breakdown of the fees that Hays charge for supplying Agency staff. 
Can detailed reports from Hays for the cost of supplying agency staff (over the 
past 18 months) be provided to the managers of the homes and trade unions? 

This has been provided to managers of both homes, but it has not been 
shared further for as this information is commercially sensitive.

19.Managers at Holcroft House and Glen Lee used to use Staff 2000 for Agency 
staff and they believe that the cost of Agency staff was lower when they used 
Staff 2000. If it turns out that Hays have been costing the homes more when 
engaging the same or a similar number of Agency staff, would the homes be 
permitted to use Staff 2000 again in the interests of reducing running costs?

The council is contracted to approach Hays first to fulfil any requirements to 
provide agency staff. It is possible in principle to use Staff 2000 or any other 
supplier, subject to complying with procurement requirements. A comparison 
of agency rates has been circulated to members of the Committee.

Page 28



DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: REDUCING DRUG RELATED LITTER – PROGRESS 
REPORT

DATE OF DECISION: 14 FEBRUARY 2019
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR - LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE

CONTACT DETAILS
AUTHOR: Name: Mark Pirnie Tel: 023 8083 3886

E-mail: Mark.pirnie@southampton .gov.uk
Director Name: Richard Ivory Tel: 023 8083 2794

E-mail: Richard.ivory@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
None
BRIEF SUMMARY
At the 17 July 2018 meeting Cabinet approved a response to the recommendations 
contained within the Reducing Drug Related Litter in Southampton Scrutiny Inquiry 
report.  The Cabinet approved action plan aimed at delivering the inquiry 
recommendations is attached as Appendix 1.  An update on progress will be provided 
at the meeting. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:
(i) That the Committee notes the progress made in implementing the 

recommendations from the Reducing Drug Related Litter in 
Southampton Scrutiny Inquiry.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS
1. This report enables the Committee to effectively scrutinise progress against 

the approved Inquiry Panel recommendations.
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
2. Not applicable
DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)
3. From 19 October 2017 to 8 March 2018 the Scrutiny Inquiry Panel undertook 

an inquiry looking at ways to reduce drug-related litter in Southampton.  The 
final report of the Panel was presented to Cabinet on 17 April 2018.

4. Cabinet approved a response to the recommendations contained within the 
scrutiny inquiry report in July 2018, this is attached as Appendix 1.

5. At the meeting officers will provide the Committee with an update on progress 
delivering the agreed action plan.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



6. The report to Cabinet in July 2018 identified that the recommendations will be 
based within existing work programmes.

Property/Other
7. None identified in the July 2018 Cabinet report.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report: 
8. Local Government Act 2000 and Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011.
Other Legal Implications: 
9. None
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
10. The report to Cabinet in July 2018 identified that there are potential health 

and reputational risks if we do not sufficiently prevent and manage drug-
related litter.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS
11. The proposals contained in the Cabinet response agreed in July 2018 support 

the Crime & Disorder Reduction Strategy (S.5 and 6 Crime and Disorder Act 
1998) and the Health and Well Being Strategy (S.116A Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007), as well as the City’s Drugs 
Strategy which sits under them.

KEY DECISION? No
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Appendices 
1. Cabinet response to the Reducing Drug Related Litter Inquiry – July 2018
Documents In Members’ Rooms
1. None
Equality Impact Assessment 
Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and Safety 
Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out?

No

Data Protection Impact Assessment
Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact 
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out?  

No

Other Background documents available for inspection at:
Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules / 
Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. Reducing Drug Related Litter Inquiry final report (Item 60 – Appendix 1)
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=3555&Ver=4

Page 30

http://www.southampton.gov.uk/modernGov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MId=3555&Ver=4


1/3

Reducing drug-related litter: response to Scrutiny Inquiry recommendations

Recommendations Accepted 
by 
Executiv
e?
(Y/N)

How will the 
recommendation 
be achieved?
(Key actions)

Responsible 
Officer

Target 
Date
for
Completi
on

1. Displacement of drug litter 
- Undertake analysis of drug 
litter finds since the night time 
closure of Grosvenor Square 
Car Park to better understand 
the link between car park 
closure and the location of drug 
litter finds in the city. This 
information should then be 
used to help inform future 
decisions relating to the night 
time closure of additional city 
centre multi-storey car parks. 

Yes Analysis

Decisions about 
night time closure

Rosie Zambra 
with Colin 
McAllister

30/09/18

Ongoing

2. Make it clearer how to 
report drug related litter - To 
encourage public reporting, 
review the location and content 
of information on the Council’s 
website that explains how to 
report drug litter and what to do 
if you find drug litter. This 
information should be made 
available to community groups 
who organise and undertake 
litter picks. 

Yes Review Council’s 
website 

City Welfare 
Wardens to continue 
to work closely with 
the cleansing team 
to ensure items are 
reported and 
removed in a timely 
manner

Rosanna 
Coppen with 
Rosie Zambra

Rosie Zambra

31/08/18

Ongoing

3. Extend opening hours of 
the Southampton Needle 
Exchange – To make it easier 
to dispose of injecting 
equipment, when 
recommissioning needle 
exchange services extend the 
opening hours of the 
Southampton Needle 
Exchange, to include weekend 
opening, and provide needle 
exchange services from the 
Cranbury Avenue Day Centre. 

Partial Substance misuse 
recommissioning 
review and redesign 
process to ensure 
needle exchange 
services are as 
widely available 
within resources

City Welfare 
Wardens to continue 
to carry needle 
disposal boxes, 
encourage the safe 
disposal of needles 
and promote needle 
exchange services

Colin 
McAllister and 
ICU

Rosie Zambra

30/06/19

Ongoing

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2/3

Recommendations Accepted 
by 
Executiv
e?
(Y/N)

How will the 
recommendation 
be achieved?
(Key actions)

Responsible 
Officer

Target 
Date
for
Completi
on

4. Signpost out of hours 
services – To raise 
awareness, include the location 
and opening hours of the out of 
hours needle exchange 
services on the Council’s 
website, on appropriate needle 
exchange forums, and request 
that the information is 
signposted on the outside of 
the Southampton Needle 
Exchange.

Yes Review current 
promotion of 
services with 
providers

Colin 
McAllister

30/09/18

5. Public sharps bins – 
Following informed 
consideration of potential sites 
and designs, pilot the locations 
for discrete public sharps bins 
where drug litter is a persistent 
problem. Information relating to 
the effectiveness of the sharps 
bins should be analysed and 
the whereabouts of the pilot 
public sharps bins should be 
communicated to people who 
inject drugs through the needle 
exchange services.

Yes Identify locations

Install sharps bins. 
Number based on 
need and cost.

Communicate to 
people who inject 
drugs and services

Monitor 
effectiveness of 
locations and 
change or expand if 
applicable.  Write 
business case if 
further resources 
required.

Rosie Zambra, 
Colin 
McAllister and 
Charlotte 
Matthews

Dave Tyrie 
with Colin 
McAllister

Colin 
McAllister

Dave 
Tyrie/Rosie 
Zambra with 
Colin 
McAllister

31/08/18

31/10/18

31/10/18

28/02/19 
and 
ongoing

Scope and undertake 2 separate reviews of the 
feasibility, acceptability and cost-effectiveness of:
a) Injectable 
methadone and 
heroin-assisted 
treatment within 
existing services, in 
detail.

Charlotte 
Matthews with 
ICU

31/04/19

6. Drug consumption rooms 
– Undertake a robust 
evaluation to fully assess the 
potential benefits a medically-
supervised pilot drug 
consumption room could bring 
to Southampton. The 
evaluation should include 
consideration of the potential 
impact on drug related litter, 
health and criminal justice 
outcomes, public finances and 
whether a facility would add 

Partial

b) Drug 
consumption room, 
currently illegal. 

Charlotte 
Matthews with 
ICU

30/09/19

Page 32



3/3

Recommendations Accepted 
by 
Executiv
e?
(Y/N)

How will the 
recommendation 
be achieved?
(Key actions)

Responsible 
Officer

Target 
Date
for
Completi
on

value to current services. The 
provision of Heroin Assisted 
Treatment from a drug 
consumption room should also 
be factored into the analysis, 
as well as the safety and 
security of staff. 

Review to be in 
outline.

7. Drug consumption rooms 
– Working in partnership with 
local authorities, representative 
bodies, providers and other 
organisations that support the 
position, lobby the Government 
for a change in legislation 
relating to drug consumption 
rooms, enabling local 
commissioners of drug 
treatment services to 
commission the establishment 
of such facilities if local need is 
evidenced.

Yes Work with the 
Association of 
Directors of Public 
Health and other 
partnerships

Jason Horsley Until 
national 
law 
changes

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO 
THE EXECUTIVE

DATE OF DECISION: 14 FEBRUARY 2019
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR - LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE

CONTACT DETAILS
AUTHOR: Name: Mark Pirnie Tel: 023 8083 3886

E-mail: Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk
Director Name: Richard Ivory Tel: 023 8083 2794

E-mail: Richard.ivory@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
None
BRIEF SUMMARY
This item enables the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to monitor and 
track progress on recommendations made to the Executive at previous meetings.
RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i) That the Committee considers the responses from Cabinet Members 
to recommendations from previous meetings and provides feedback.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS
1. To assist the Committee in assessing the impact and consequence of 

recommendations made at previous meetings.
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
2. None.
DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)
3. Appendix 1 of the report sets out the recommendations made to Cabinet 

Members at previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee.  It also contains summaries of any action taken by Cabinet 
Members in response to the recommendations.

4. The progress status for each recommendation is indicated and if the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee confirms acceptance of the 
items marked as completed they will be removed from the list.  In cases 
where action on the recommendation is outstanding or the Committee does 
not accept the matter has been adequately completed, it will be kept on the 
list and reported back to the next meeting.  It will remain on the list until such 
time as the Committee accepts the recommendation as completed.  Rejected 
recommendations will only be removed from the list after being reported to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue 
5. None.
Property/Other
6. None.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report: 
7. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Part 1A Section 9 of 

the Local Government Act 2000.
Other Legal Implications: 
8. None
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
9. None.
POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS
10. None
KEY DECISION No
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Appendices 
1. Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations – 14 February 2019
Documents In Members’ Rooms
1. None
Equality Impact Assessment 
Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and Safety 
Impact Assessments (ESIA) to be carried out?

No

Data Protection Impact Assessment
Do the implications/subject of the report require a Data Protection Impact
Assessment (DPIA) to be carried out?

No

Other Background Documents
Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for 
inspection at:
Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information 

Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing document to 
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None

Page 36



Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee: Holding the Executive to Account
Scrutiny Monitoring – 14 February 2019

Date Portfolio Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress 
Status

1) That the Southampton recorded crime 
figures from April 2018 to November 2018 
are circulated to the Committee. 

A spreadsheet which shows the 
commission rates over the past 2 years 
for the major crime types was circulated to 
the Committee on 6/02/19. 
Supt Whiting - Of most concern is the 
worrying increase in domestic assaults 
which cannot be entirely attributed to 
improved confidence; burglary, 
possession of a weapon and personal 
robbery all of which I believe partners 
would be able to play their part to reduce. 
I have an agenda item at the next Safe 
City Partnership meeting on 15 February 
2019 to talk about our serious organised 
profile for Southampton and hope that we 
can develop a tactical plan of partnership 
activity. 

10/01/19 Community 
Wellbeing

Safe City 
Partnership 
Annual Review

2) That, reflecting concerns about the 
responsiveness of the service, Hampshire 
Constabulary reviews the effectiveness of 
the 101 service.

Supt Whiting - There has been no 
increase in the government grant for 
policing for 10 years and the precept has 
not kept pace with inflation. This has 
meant that Hampshire Constabulary has 
effectively suffered an £80 million budget 
cut in real terms. Although there have not 
been significant reductions of staff within 
the Contact Management Centre, the 
demand for police services has increased 
exponentially but it has not been possible 
to increase resources to manage the 
increase in demand.
When prioritising calls, the 999 service 
always take priority as some calls relate to 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Date Portfolio Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress 
Status

life at risk or crimes in action. Therefore 
101 operators will always divert to 999 
calls if the 999 call takers become 
overwhelmed. The demand on the 999 
system this summer was exceptional 
given the unprecedented weather. This 
led to a reduction in the ability of 
operators to manage 101 calls. Ironically, 
sometimes when people have to wait for a 
101 operator to answer their call, bearing 
in mind it is a non-emergency number, 
they hang up and call 999 which becomes 
a vicious circle.
Consequently, a demand transformation 
programme is currently underway to 
channel shift some of that demand and 
ensure that demand that should rest with 
other partners and organisations is quickly 
diverted. This should improve the 
responsiveness of the 101 service but 
also offer people an option such as 
reporting crime on line. Also, a new ‘state 
of the art’ command and control system 
will be introduced across both the 
Hampshire Constabulary and Thames 
Valley Police this Spring which will enable 
each force to take each other’s calls in 
times of high demand.

3) To increase confidence in, and support for, 
the Police and other community safety 
agencies it is recommended that the Safe 
City Partnership:

i. Seek to increase the awareness and 
promotion of positive outcomes 
delivered by community safety 
partners across the city.

ii. Use partner agencies social media 
platforms to more effectively re-

Supt Whiting - Improving public 
confidence by celebrating success across 
the partnership in the various media 
outlets is a personal priority for me as 
Southampton District Commander. I have 
a meeting with my corporate 
communications officer in Southampton in 
February to share this vision and develop 

P
age 38



Date Portfolio Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress 
Status

assure the public about the activity 
and performance of the Police and 
partners.

iii. Publish on a regular basis crime 
figures if they project a positive story 
and can re-assure the public.

a plan.  This will include liaison with other 
partners where relevant.
The Safe City Partnership will be 
considering this recommendation at the 
next meeting on 15 February 2019 and 
will respond to OSMC formally following 
that date.

4) Following the development of the new 
Southampton Safe City Strategy, the Safe 
City Partnership develop a funding bid to 
Government to help fund a programme of 
initiatives that can improve outcomes 
relating to criminal activity associated with 
public health issues and adverse childhood 
experiences.

The Safe City Partnership will be 
considering this recommendation at the 
next meeting on 15 February 2019 and 
will respond to OSMC formally following 
that date.

5) That, to support the funding bid, and to 
learn from good practice, the Safe City 
Partnership undertake analysis of cities that 
have delivered improved outcomes with 
regards to public health related crime and 
adverse childhood experiences.  

The Safe City Partnership will be 
considering this recommendation at the 
next meeting on 15 February 2019 and 
will respond to OSMC formally following 
that date.

6) That the Cabinet Member and the Chair of 
the OSMC outline the case to the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Southampton 
and Portsmouth to receive a fair share of 
any additional Police resources, reflecting 
the levels of crime and need in these cities. 

Representations were made by the 
Cabinet Member at the January 2019 
meeting of the Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Police and Crime Panel and the 
case for funding for Southampton 
continues to be pressed through the local 
media.

7) That, whilst recognising the information 
provided through the National Crime 
Survey, consideration is given by the Safe 
City Partnership as to how the under 
reporting of crime in Southampton can be 
captured effectively.

The Safe City Partnership will be 
considering this recommendation at the 
next meeting on 15 February 2019 and 
will respond to OSMC formally following 
that date.

P
age 39



Date Portfolio Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress 
Status

1) That Cabinet agree to model the budget 
proposal to increase charges for crossing 
the Itchen Bridge, and, should the 
modelling show that the proposal is likely to 
place at risk compliance with EU ambient 
air quality limits, the proposal is rejected by 
the Executive. 

There is currently no evidence supporting 
traffic displacement impacting air quality 
at key locations. However, we will 
consider further following close of budget 
consultation and the decision will be taken 
as part of the Budget proposals by full 
Council.

2) That, in the development of Council 
strategies and policies, an analysis is 
undertaken, and consideration is given, to 
the impact the policies and strategies may 
have on air quality in Southampton. 

This will be further considered and 
addressed by the Green City Charter.

3) That, should Government decide not to 
fund the air quality measures outlined in the 
plan, the Executive agree to resource the 
proposals from Council finances.

Rejected. A bid is being made to 
Government and to agree this at this time 
would undermine the outcome of that bid.

16/01/19 Green City Proposed 
Clean Air Zone 
for 
Southampton

4) That the Green City Charter is developed 
via a cross-party working group and that 
consideration is given to involving 
stakeholders in this process.

This has always been the Executive’s 
intention.

P
age 40


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (including matters arising)
	7 The Future of Glen Lee and Holcroft House Residential Care Homes
	Appendix 1.docx
	Appendix 2.docx

	8 Reducing Drug Related Litter – Progress report
	Appendix

	9 Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations to the Executive
	Appendix 1 - Monitoring Appendix.docx


